
 
 

 
i 

 
Cambridge City Council 

South Area Committee 
 

Date:  Monday, 29 November 2021 

Time:  7.00 pm 

Venue:  This a virtual meeting and therefore there is no physical location for 
this meeting. 

Contact:  democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk, tel:01223 457000 
 
Agenda 
 

1    Welcome, Introduction and Apologies for Absence (Pages 3 - 4) 

2    Declarations of Interest  

3    Notes of Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 10) 

4    Matters and Actions Arising from the Minutes (Pages 11 - 12) 

5    Open Forum  

6    Making Connections: Have Your Say on Greener 
Travel in Greater Cambridge Consultation - SAC  

 Presentation by Greater Cambridge Partnership followed by question 
and answer session. 

7    Greater Cambridge Local Plan – Consultation  

 Presentation by Planning Officers followed by question and answer 
session. 
 
The Greater Cambridge Local Plan First Proposals consultation can 
be found on the Greater Cambridge Planning website: 
https://www.greatercambridgeplanning.org/localplan 

8    Environmental Report - SAC (Pages 13 - 40) 

9    City Centre COVID Recovery Project Update - Area 
Committee Briefing - SAC (Pages 41 - 42) 

 Briefing paper to note from Head of Environmental Services. 

 

Public Document Pack

https://www.greatercambridgeplanning.org/localplan


 

 
ii 

 
 
 

City Councillors: Page-Croft (Chair), Hauk (Vice-Chair), Ashton, Cox, 
S. Davies, Dryden, Flaubert, Lee and McPherson 

County Councillors: Beckett, Goodliffe and Slatter 
 

Information for the public 
Details how to observe the Committee meeting will be published no later than 
24 hours before the meeting.  
 
Members of the public are welcome to view the live stream of this meeting, 
except during the consideration of exempt or confidential items, by following 
the link to be published on the Council’s website.  
 
Any person who participates in the meeting in accordance with the Council’s 
public speaking time, is deemed to have consented to being recorded and to 
the use of those images (where participating via video conference) and/or 
sound recordings for webcast purposes. When speaking, members of the 
public should not disclose any personal information of any individual as this 
might infringe the rights of that individual and breach the Data Protection Act. 
 
If members of the public wish to address the committee please contact 
Democratic Services by 12 noon two working days before the meeting.  
 

Questions can be submitted throughout the meeting to 
Democratic.Services@cambridge.gov.uk and we will endeavour to respond to 
questions during the discussion on the relevant agenda item. If we run out of 
time a response will be provided to members of the public outside of the 
meeting and published on the relevant Area Committee meeting webpage. 
 
For full information about committee meetings, committee reports, councillors 
and the democratic process:  

 Guidance for how to join virtual committees run via Microsoft Teams: 
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/have-your-say-at-committee-meetings  

 Website: http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk 

 Email: democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk 

 Phone: 01223 457000 

 

mailto:Democratic.Services@cambridge.gov.uk
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/have-your-say-at-committee-meetings
http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk


Information relating to Area Committee meetings 
 
 
Council agreed on 27 May 2021: 
 
“That Area Committees continue to be run virtually up to 31 December 2021 initially, 
with a review by Civic Affairs Committee in the autumn on a more permanent change 
and to request that the Monitoring Officer make necessary immediate amendments 
to the Council’s Constitution to give effect to this change.” 
 
 
As Councillors will be aware, the Government did not extend the provisions in the 
Coronavirus Act 2020 beyond 7 May 2021 to enable councillor decision making to 
take place virtually. 
 
Area Committees, by being virtual and not in person, will therefore not be able to 
make any decisions either independently or that have been delegated by the 
Executive (eg area committee grants-which are not scheduled to be considered until 
spring 2022). 
 
Civic Affairs Committee will consider the pros and cons of continuing with virtual 
Area Committees in the autumn. At Council on 27 May, Members asked that other 
considerations are also included in the review (eg the boundaries of the current Area 
Committees, the format).  Councillors views will be canvassed as part of the review. 
 
The Constitution needs to be amended to reflect that Area Committees will be non-
decision making for as long as they are held virtually. 
 
 
The changes to the Constitution are as follows:  
 
Article 8 
 
8.2.5 Area committees have these principal purposes:  
 

 To make decisions concerning executive and regulatory functions of the 
Council which have been delegated to them; 

 
Deleted as Area Committees cannot make decisions whilst being held virtually. 
 
Part 3 Section 11 
 
This section describes the Council functions for which area committees are to be 
responsible for. 
 
This will not apply in so far as Area Committees operating as virtual meetings cannot 
be decision making.  Area Committees can advise and decisions will be taken 
subsequently by the relevant person or body empowered to do so taking into 
account the views of the Area Committee. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



County Councillors present at Area Committee 
 
Members are reminded that County Councillors are co-opted to the area committee 
where the clear majority of the County Council Division is within the area committee.   
 
Note-some county councillors have chosen to also attend area committees where 
less than the majority of a Division is in that area. 
 
 

Page 4



South Area Committee  Monday, 6 September 2021 

 

 
 
 

1 

SOUTH AREA COMMITTEE 6 September 2021 
 7.00  - 8.10 pm 
 
Present 
 
Area Committee Members: Councillors Hauk (Vice-Chair, in the Chair), Cox, 
S. Davies, Dryden, Flaubert, Lee, McPherson, Beckett and Slatter 
 
 
Officers:  
Head of Property Services: Dave Prinsep 
Anti-Social Behaviour Officer: Maureen Tsentides 
Committee Manager: James Goddard 
Meeting Producer: Liam Martin 
 
 
Other Officers in Attendance: 
Police Detective Sergeant: Kiri Mazur 
Police Sergeant Chris Bockham 
 
 

FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE COUNCIL 

 

21/15/SAC Welcome, Introduction and Apologies for Absence 
 
Apologies were received from Councillors Ashton, Page-Croft and Goodliffe. 

21/16/SAC Declarations of Interest 
 
No interests were declared. 

21/17/SAC Minutes 
 
The notes of the 21 June meeting were submitted to this meeting for 
councillors to note. 

21/18/SAC Matters and Actions Arising from the Minutes 
 
The committee action sheet was noted. Councillors would send any updates to 
the Committee Manager outside of the meeting. 

Public Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



South Area Committee  Monday, 6 September 2021 

 

 
 
 

2 

  
Councillor Slatter referred to 21/12/SAC Open Forum. The skate park in 
Trumpington had been used by children over the holiday. 

21/19/SAC Open Forum 
 
1. A member of the public raised the following issues:  

i. Requested information on the consultation conducted by Hills on their 
proposals to alter the Local Equipped Area for Play (LEAP) areas on 
the Ninewells development. 

ii. The play area had flooded. This led to a consultation from Hills but 
residents thought there was no follow up afterwards. 

iii. Expressed concern that a “cheap fix” solution would be imposed by 
the developer. 

 
Councillor Hauk read a response from Major Projects & Programme 
Manager: The LEAP is reference to one of the play areas on the nine 
wells development. Hills have recently conducted a consultation relating 
to some changes required on site. Cambridge City Council have been 
supporting Hills in this work, but they are the lead in terms of installation. 
Essentially the play area was built within a sustainable drainage basin 
not designed to flood unless sever storm events, but there has been 
water sitting in the basin. Cambridge City Council wouldn’t accept the 
transfer of the site until this was resolved. There are mixed views 
amongst residents as to what should be done, some happy for it to be 
left, others want it relocated. Officers were working with Hills to find a 
suitable solution and had a meeting about it 1 September 
 
Councillor Davies said residents had put a lot of effort into finding a 
solution. The consultation looked like a “done deal” by Hills. \looked 
forward to hearing the outcome of the meeting between Hills and City 
Council Officers. 

21/20/SAC Policing and Safer Neighbourhoods 
 
The Committee received a report from DS Mazur regarding policing and safer 
neighbourhoods trends. 
 
The report outlined actions taken since the last reporting period. The current 
emerging issues/neighbourhood trends for each ward were also highlighted 
(see report for full details). Previous local areas of concern and engagement 
activity noted in the report were: 

Page 6



South Area Committee  Monday, 6 September 2021 

 

 
 
 

3 

i. Continue work to tackle vehicle-related antisocial behaviour and driving 
across the South of the City;  

ii. Continue work (patrols and diverting young people away from crime and 
antisocial behaviour) across the South of the City, with specific focus on 
Trumpington Ward;  

iii. Drug dealing, moped riding and anti-social behaviour around Cherry 
Hinton Rec and Cherry Hinton Hall; and  

iv. Bike theft in Nine Wells and Trumpington Ward. 
 
The virtual Area Committee would not be making a decision, so would not vote 
on priorities set by the Police. The Police reported back on the local areas of 
concern they were currently focussing on. Councillors and members of the 
public could not change these, but they could suggest ideas/issues for the 
Police to focus on. 
 
The Committee discussed the following policing issues: 

i. Launch of Pegasus scheme 1st September 2021. 
a. Pegasus is a free service for people who can find it hard to 

communicate with the police. 
b. People can register on a form by telling the Police their name, 

address and information that will tell the Police how people prefer 
to communicate. 

c. The Police will keep people’s details safe on a secure database. 
d. Once registered the Police will send people a ‘Pegasus’ card. 
e. Other Pegasus forces: 

i. Nottinghamshire Police 
ii. Sussex Police 
iii. Surrey Police 
iv. Dyfed-Powys Police 
v. Lincolnshire Police 
vi. City of London Police 
vii. Bedfordshire 
viii. Herts to follow 

ii. Crime in Red Cross Lane Area. 
iii. Use of mopeds around the city: 

a. Anti-social behaviour (ASB). 
b. Noise. 
c. Speeding. 

iv. ASB around Cherry Hinton lakes (although these are not open to the 
public). 

v. Referred to current priority  “Continue work (patrols and diverting young 
people away from crime and antisocial behaviour) across the South of 

Page 7



South Area Committee  Monday, 6 September 2021 

 

 
 
 

4 

the City, with specific focus on Trumpington Ward.” The footpath which 
leads from Foster Road to the busway, passing between the Foster 
Road allotments/community garden and the chicken plots behind Drury 
Avenue. The surface is very good now, and it is much used by bikes and 
pedestrians, so there has been much discussion about lighting here. If 
CCTV was to be introduced along the busway, it would make sense to 
include this footpath, but lighting would be required. 

vi. ASB from Airbnb short term lets. 
vii. Joint working groups to address ASB on the Trumpington/Cherry Hinton 

border of City and South Cambridgeshire. 
 
Red Cross Lane Area Neighbourhood Watch Scheme Coordinator & RARA 
Secretary raised the following policing issues: 

i. The successes and stress of setting up a Neighbourhood Watch Scheme 
& Residents Association in Cambridge. 

ii. Can RARA ask how Red Cross Areas preventative approach can 
be prioritised and continued at a time of limited statutory and Police 
resources? 

iii. In 2018/19 identified suspicious, anti-social and criminal activities often 
at unsocial and ad hoc hours. 

iv. The Police, Council and Councillors need to be commended. Due to their 
response to calls for help, advice on how to report both suspicious and 
Police Incidents stopped the issues and over 3 years have continued to 
contain the situation. 

v. Since the latest lockdown was lifted suspicious, anti-social and low level 
criminal activities were beginning to emerge and increase. 

vi. Residents thought that targeting resources based on evidence of crime is 
an effective Policing method. 

vii. However, the achievements in Red Cross Areas have been in containing 
and preventing crime taking hold. This is not always obvious to others let 
alone statistically quantifiable. 

viii. The success has been due to a joined up multi agency approach. How 
can this be prioritised and continued at a time of limited statutory and 
Police resources? 

 
DS Mazur said the following in response to questions: 

i. The Pegasus scheme was for children and adults. The Police had a 
safe-guarding role so parents/guardians or responsible adults would 
have to complete registration forms on behalf of others. 

ii. Undertook to provide promotional information to Councillors. 
 

Page 8



South Area Committee  Monday, 6 September 2021 

 

 
 
 

5 

Action: PS Chris Bockham or DS Mazur to pass information about the 
Pegasus Scheme to councillors. Also to pass SAC Councillor details to police 
colleagues so details of the scheme can be shared (by them) with public health 
partners. 
 
iii. There were peaks and troughs in crime. Different people may cause the 

same types of crime in an area. 
iv. Geography could assist or deter crime in an area. The Police would liaise 

with stakeholders and partners  to increase the Police profile to make 
areas such as Red Cross Lane less attractive for people to congregate 
and cause crime. 

v. Police had to balance issues against other priorities to put resources  in 
the locations to get best results. 

vi. The Police were monitoring trends and asked people to report issues 
and incidents to build up trend profiles. 

vii. Although staff resources had been cut back, the Police would like to be 
invited to neighbourhood watch meetings. 

viii. Kensington and Chelsea had traffic cameras activated by noise instead 
of speed. Cambridge City would need a Public Space Protection Order to 
implement a similar type of camera. 
 

Action: Maureen Tsentides to investigate if a Public Space Protection Order 
could be implemented so that noise activated speed cameras can be set up to 
combat noise caused by mopeds driven in an anti-social way. 

 
Action: Councillor Beckett to pass on known details about mopeds driven in an 
anti-social way to Police. 
 
ix. Referred to P7 of the Officer report: ASB in short-term lets. Airbnb was 

usually a breach of tenancy regulations. The power to address this 
depended on who had the property freehold. The freeholder could 
remove a lease from a leaseholder and so stop them from sub-letting to 
Airbnb. The Police needed to work with letting agents, free holders and 
management companies to address issues in future. 

 
The Chair noted the following local areas of concern the Police were currently 
focussing on: 

i. Continue work to tackle vehicle-related antisocial behaviour and driving 
across the South of the City;  

ii. Continue work (patrols and diverting young people away from crime and 
antisocial behaviour) across the South of the City, with specific focus on 
Trumpington Ward;  

Page 9



South Area Committee  Monday, 6 September 2021 

 

 
 
 

6 

iii. Drug dealing, moped riding and anti-social behaviour around Cherry 
Hinton Rec and Cherry Hinton Hall; and  

iv. Bike theft in Nine Wells and Trumpington Ward. 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 8.10 pm 
 
 
 
 

CHAIR 
 

Page 10



Committee Action Sheet - South Area Committee (SAC) 
 
Date: 06/09/21 
Updated on: 10/09/21 
 
Minute reference: 21/20/SAC Policing and Safer Neighbourhoods 

 Action: PS Chris Bockham or DS Kiri MAZUR to pass information 
about the Pegasus Scheme to councillors. Also to pass SAC 
Councillor details to police colleagues so details of the scheme can 
be shared (by them) with public health partners. 

 Progress:  
o TBC. 

 

 Action: Maureen Tsentides to investigate if a Public Space 
Protection Order could be implemented so that noise activated 
speed cameras can be set up to combat noise caused by mopeds 
driven in an anti-social way. 

 Progress:  
o TBC. 

 

 Action: Councillor Beckett to pass on known details about mopeds 
driven in an anti-social way to Police. 

 Progress:  
o TBC. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 27 
 

Environmental 
Report 
 
 
Cambridge South Area 
[Covering the wards of Cherry Hinton, Queen Edith’s and 
Trumpington] 
 
 
Period of June 2021 to November 2021 
 

  

Page 13

Agenda Item 8



Page 2 of 27 
 

Contents 
 

1. Introduction ................................................................................................................................................................ 3 
2. South Area Profiles .................................................................................................................................................... 4 

Ward Profile: Cherry Hinton ........................................................................................................................................... 5 
Ward Profile: Queen Edith’s ........................................................................................................................................ 12 
Ward Profile: Trumpington ........................................................................................................................................... 16 
Community Engagement Team Updates .................................................................................................................... 21 
Greater Cambridge Shared Waste Service Update .................................................................................................... 22 

Environmental and Waste Data ...................................................................................................................................... 23 
Public Realm [South Area] ....................................................................................................................................... 23 
Private Realm [South Area] ..................................................................................................................................... 24 
Waste and Recycling Data [Greater Cambridge Area] ............................................................................................ 25 

3. Key contacts ............................................................................................................................................................ 26 
4. Volunteer schemes .................................................................................................................................................. 27 

Time Credits ................................................................................................................................................................ 27 
Streets and Open Spaces Volunteers: ........................................................................................................................ 27 
Recycling Champions: ................................................................................................................................................. 27 

 

 

 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 14



Page 3 of 27 
 

1. Introduction 
 
This report provides an overview of the council’s Streets and Open Spaces, Environmental Health 
and Shared Waste service activity in the Area Committee area over the past six months.   
 
This report provides open data on service performance, so that City and County Councillors and 
their constituents are informed of what service activity is happening in their area; and has the 
opportunity to engage in and help to shape this activity, including identifying specific local service 
requests/ issues.  
 

1. Streets and Open Spaces Operations Team: 
a. Street cleansing and Grounds Maintenance – cleans all residential streets and public 

land and maintains all grass and shrub beds across the city. 
b. Community Engagement Team - works with Community Payback and Streets and 

Open Spaces volunteers to deliver community nominated improvement projects. 
c. Enforcement Team - investigate and take action against instances of environmental 

crime and dog control issues in public places across the city.  
2. Streets and Open Spaces Assets Development Team: 
3. Streets and Open Spaces Projects Team  

a. Projects  
b. Parks  
c. Trees   

4. The Greater Cambridge Shared Waste Service provide rubbish and recycling collections 
from homes and business Cambridge and South Cambridgeshire and empties 32,000 bins 
each day.  It is responsible for setting policy on how this should be done and educating 
residents and customers on how best to recycle. 

5. Environmental Health:  
a. Pest control – free treatments for rats, mice, cockroaches, bedbugs, and pharaohs 

ants   
b. Private sector Housing interventions – complaints and investigations regarding 

condition of properties  
c. Other public health interventions – refuse, hoarding, bonfires 
d. Noise complaints – daytime and night-time noise complaints,   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 15



Page 4 of 27 
 

2. South Area Profiles  
 

In this section an update of what teams have been doing in the previous six months is detailed.   

Page 16



Page 5 of 27 
 

Ward Profile: Cherry Hinton  
 

Map 

 

 
Community Engagement team  
 
The Community Engagement Team held two successful community clean-up days in the South of 
the city where the service provided skips for local residents to recycle and dispose of their waste 
and bulky items as well as the take it or leave it stall for residents to recycle unwanted items in 
good condition. The clean-up days were held at Tenby Close and Teversham Drift.  
 
The Community Engagement team facilitated corporate events with RAF Molesworth and Amazon 
in July, Aveva in September, and Illumia in October 2021. The team completed various projects at 
Cherry Hinton Hall including bench renovation, cutting back brambles, removing old fencing drilling 
holes for nesting bees and laying woodchip around recently planted trees. These events proved to 
be very successful and have made a positive impact on this well used area by providing new 
habitats for insects 

Page 17



Page 6 of 27 
 

 

 
 
A green team session was run at Cherry Hinton Hall where volunteers completed a litter pick, 
various tree works including removing saplings from base of trees and weeded in September 
2021. A green team was also run at Colville Road in August.  
 

 
 
With the collaboration of the Rivers Trust ran two litter picks with ARM on the green area at 
Fulbourn Road. The Rivers Trust recorded types of litter found and how much was collected. At 
the end of each session, they weighed the waste to compare to other parts of the county. This 
took place in September.  
 
In October a green team was held at Cherry Hinton Hall to put out and rake bark around the oak 
tree.   
 
If you would like to nominate some work for the Community Payback to undertake or to get 
involved with volunteering, please get in contact with the Community Engagement Team.  

Page 18



Page 7 of 27 
 

 
Enforcement team  
 

• Tweedale – (June) Vehicle left SORN on council property. Investigated and contact made 
with the registered keeper who subsequently removed the vehicle. 

• Cherry Hinton Hall Grounds – (June) – Report received of a dog running loose and not 
under control. Patrols increased but unable to identify dog owner. (October) Dog on dog 
attack, resulting in a human also being injured. Owner of dog identified, and a Community 
Protection Notice Warning (CPW) served stipulating actions to be taken to ensure no 
further incidents.  

 
• Cherry Hinton Road – (June) Litter thrown from a motor vehicle witnessed and investigated. 

(July) Furniture dumped next to litter bins, inspected but no suspect identified, the waste 
was removed. (August) Junction of Queen Ediths Way/Cherry Hinton Road Litter thrown 
from a motor vehicle witnessed, resulting in a fixed penalty issued for littering. (November) 
Stray dog contained, collected by enforcement, and reunited with owner. Follow up 
microchipping letter sent to the dog owner, requiring their up-to-date details be registered 
on an approved database. 

• Cherry Hinton High Street – (June) Domestic waste found dumped. A suspect was 
identified and investigated, resulting in a fixed penalty notice issued for littering domestic 
waste. (July) Business waste flytip was investigated. Notice served on the business, 
documentation requested, and the notice was fully complied with. (September) Littering 
whilst on foot witnessed and a fixed penalty issued for littering. 

• Church End – (July) Vehicles associated with businesses causing obstruction to residents. 
Contact made with the businesses and monitoring on-going. Parking Control contacted and 
patrols conducted. All vehicles parked have tax status regularly checked and individual 
violations dealt with as required.  

• Mill End Road – (July) Suspected abandoned vehicle investigated. Vehicle claimed by 
registered keeper following a 7-day notice issued. 

• Rectory Terrace – (July) Suspected abandoned vehicle investigated, 7-day notice issued. 
Site re-inspected and the vehicle was no longer in situ. 

• Teversham Drift – (July) Suspected abandoned vehicle investigated, 7-day notice issued. 
At time of re-inspection the vehicle had been removed from the site. (September) Increased 
incidents of fly-tipping in this area, dumped black bags containing general household waste 
and items of furniture found. Contact made with residents and education provided. 

Page 19



Page 8 of 27 
 

(October) Four suspected abandoned vehicles reported investigated. Three vehicles moved 
after the 7-day notices issued. One vehicle declared abandoned and removed from the 
highway and taken to storage. (November) nuisance vehicles parked on residential areas 
and grass areas, suspect identified and provided educational information. Nuisance 
vehicles subsequently removed and ongoing monitoring to ensure compliance.  

• Colville Road – (July) Garden waste deposited in the passageway at the rear of properties. 
Contact made with residents and education provided. Green waste removed and disposed 
of correctly. 

• Glenmere Close – (August) Household waste dumped at the garage area. Suspects 
identified and investigated, resulting in a fixed penalty notice issued for fly-tipping. 

• Kathleen Elliott Way – (August) Suspected abandoned vehicle investigated, 7-day notice 
issued, and the registered keeper contacted. At time of re-inspection the vehicle was no 
longer at the site. 

 
• Langdale Close – (September) Domestic waste dumped. Suspect identified and 

investigation conducted. 
• Ventress Farm Court – (September) Suspected abandoned vehicle investigated, 7-day 

notice issued, and the vehicle was subsequently moved from the site. (October) Suspected 
abandoned vehicle reported. Investigation on-going. 

• Railway Street – (September) Incidents of fouling/dog control reported by residents. A 
person jogging with a dog running off lead and not clearing up fouling was reported, and the 
investigation is on-going. 

• St Bedes Crescent – (September) - Suspected abandoned motorbike reported. 
Investigation conducted and the vehicle declared abandoned and removed from the site.  

• Rosemary Lane – (October) Domestic waste dumped on grass verge. Suspects identified 
and currently being investigated.  

• Reilly Way – (November) Dog fouling problem reported. Suspect dog walker identified and 
sent letter. New fouling signage installed at the site.  

 
If you would like to report an environmental crime issue in your ward, please get in contact with 
your Enforcement Officer, Bree Donovan. 

Operations Team 
 
Between these months we have been carrying out various tasks around the ward areas. These 
tasks include grass cutting, shrub and hedge pruning, sport pitch marking, litter picking, litter bin 

Page 20



Page 9 of 27 
 

emptying, sweeping, removal of fly-tip, graffiti removal, and helping empty and clean void 
properties for our Housing Department. 
 
The grass cutting and shrub/hedge pruning were both put on hold around the middle of October to 
concentrate on leaf fall over the coming months, but all the other activities happen every working 
day. 

 
 
In the coming months Operations will finish leaf clearing and start winter Grounds Maintenance 
work, of cutting back and reducing any shrubs/hedges that have grown substantially over the past 
year.  
 
The hot spot map shows the numbers and locations of the flytips cleared within the last six-month 
period.  
 

Page 21



Page 10 of 27 
 

 
 
If you would like to report a cleansing or grounds maintenance issue, please visit our website, and 
complete the relevant webform (found at https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/street-and-park-
maintenance) or contact our Customer Service Centre.  
 

Local Nature Reserves and Biodiversity  
 
At Wenvoe Meadow volunteers helped with the Botanical survey, grasses, and wildflower 
workshop. (Sunday survey session) Staggered cutting and raking of grassland for invertebrates in 

Page 22

https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/street-and-park-maintenance
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/street-and-park-maintenance


Page 11 of 27 
 

June. Between August to October the meadow was cut with scythes and two different types of 
hibernation sites created.   
 

 
 
If you would like to get involved with volunteering on the Local Nature Reserves, please get in 
contact with Vic Smith.  

  
  

Page 23



Page 12 of 27 
 

Ward Profile: Queen Edith’s   
 

Map 

 

Community Engagement team  
 
The Community Engagement Team held a successful community clean-up day in the South of the 
city where the service provided skips for local residents to recycle and dispose of their waste and 
bulky items as well as the take it or leave it stall for residents to recycle unwanted items in good 
condition. The clean-up days was held at Red Cross Lane. The team also supported the clean up 
day that was run at Wulfstan Way. Both events were run in September 2021.   
 
The community engagement team ran an event at Joys Garden in October to remove some of the 
old hoardings. And in June the team ran a litter pick at Nightingale Recreation Ground and found 
several bags of litter and two abandoned bicycles.  
 
If you would like to nominate some work for the Community Payback to undertake or to get 
involved with volunteering, please get in contact with the Community Engagement Team.  
 
Enforcement team  
 
Regular patrols have been carried out in the area spending approximately 20 hours per week, 
during this time 17 vehicles were found to have breached the verge parking restrictions in  I Mowbray 
Road and Fendon Road, warning letters were sent to the registered keepers of each vehicle. 
 

Page 24



Page 13 of 27 
 

Four investigations were conducted into domestic waste incidents were carried out which resulted 
in one fixed penalty being issued for littering domestic waste, two cases had no evidence, and one 
case is still ongoing. During the same period four littering from a motor vehicle investigation were 
carried out resulted in four fixed penalty notices issued for littering at Queen Edith’s Way, Kinnaird 
Way and Hills Road. 
 

 
 
Four abandoned vehicle report were received at Godwin Way, Cavendish Avenue, Wulfstan Way 
and Hills Road. Two vehicles were claimed by the owner, one was not on site and one case is still 
ongoing.  

 
If you would like to report an environmental crime issue in your ward, please get in contact with 
your Enforcement Officer, Tony Durman.  
 
Operations Team 
 
Between these months we have been carrying out various tasks around the ward areas. These 
tasks include grass cutting, shrub and hedge pruning, sport pitch marking, litter picking, litter bin 
emptying, sweeping, removal of fly-tip, graffiti removal, and helping empty and clean void 
properties for our Housing Department. 
 
The grass cutting and shrub/hedge pruning were both put on hold around the middle of October to 
concentrate on leaf fall over the coming months, but all the other activities happen every working 
day. 

Page 25



Page 14 of 27 
 

 
 
In the coming months Operations will finish leaf clearing and start winter Grounds Maintenance 
work, of cutting back and reducing any shrubs/hedges that have grown substantially over the past 
year.  
 
The hot spot map shows the numbers and locations of the flytips cleared within the last six-month 
period.  
 

Page 26



Page 15 of 27 
 

 
 
If you would like to report a cleansing or grounds maintenance issue, please visit our website, and 
complete the relevant webform (found at https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/street-and-park-
maintenance) or contact our Customer Service Centre.  
 

  

Page 27

https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/street-and-park-maintenance
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/street-and-park-maintenance


Page 16 of 27 
 

Ward Profile: Trumpington  
 

Map 

 

Community Engagement team  
 
In August the Community Engagement team ran two group litter pick and tree watering sessions, 
the first was at Anstey Way and the second was at Byron Square.  
 
A community clean up day for Byron Square area is planned for early 2022 in February / March 
and details of the event will be circulated to residents once the date and location have been 
confirmed.  
 
If you would like to nominate some work for the Community Payback to undertake or to get 
involved with volunteering, please get in contact with the Community Engagement Team.  
 
Enforcement team  
 

Page 28



Page 17 of 27 
 

• Grantchester Road – (June) Untaxed vehicle parked on the highway for over two months. 
Vehicle was immediately removed from the highway using devolved DVLA powers. 

• Byron Square Recycling Centre – (June) Large fly-tip at the site, three suspects identified 
and investigated, resulting in a fixed penalty notice issued for littering. (October) Bagged 
recyclable and non-recyclable waste dumped outside the receptacles. Suspect identified 
and investigated, resulting in a fixed penalty notice issued for fly-tipping. 

• Fawcett Road – (June) Vehicle parked for over two months, suspected abandoned.  On 
inspection vehicle found to be mouldy, 7-day notice issued. Vehicle claimed by registered 
keeper, removed from the site, and scrapped. 

• Harradine Street – (June) Suspected abandoned vehicle investigation, 7-day notice issued. 
Vehicle claimed by the registered keeper. 

 
• Glebe Farm Drive – (June) Waste dumped next to the underground recycling bins. Suspect 

identified and investigated, resulting in a fixed penalty notice issued for littering. 
• Windmill Drive – (June) Suspected abandoned vehicle reported. Inspected and 7-day notice 

issued. Vehicle claimed by registered keeper and moved off road. 
• Charger Road – (June) Two suspected abandoned vehicles reported to have not moved in 

over two months. The vehicles were investigated, 7-day notices issued and at time of re-
inspection both vehicles had been removed.  

• Paget Road – (June) Dog repeated straying from garden. Dog owner identified and in (July) 
a Community Protection Notice Warning (CPW) issued to the dog owner, providing steps to 
be taken to prevent dog straying outside the boundary of the property. (August) Further 
reports of the dog straying received, therefore a Community Protection Notice (CPN) 
served, stipulating actions to be taken by the dog owner to prevent the dog straying from 
the property. To date the notice has been complied with. (August) Suspected abandoned 
vehicle reported. Vehicle investigated and subsequently claimed by registered keeper. 

• Whittle Avenue – (July) Vehicle parked for several weeks without moving, suspected 
abandoned. On inspection found the vehicle in a poor condition, with flat tyres. 7-day notice 
issued, and the vehicle was later claimed by the registered keeper. 

• Harvest Road – (July) Suspected abandoned vehicle reported, investigation conducted and 
subsequently the vehicle was declared abandoned, and the vehicle was removed from the 
site to storage. 

• St Michael Street – (July) Suspected abandoned vehicle reported and inspected. On 
inspection parking issues apparent at the site. Vehicle deemed not abandoned. 

• Forbes Close – (July) Suspected abandoned vehicle investigated. 7-day notice issued, and 
the vehicle was subsequently claimed by the registered keeper. 

• Hobson Avenue/Park – (July) Dog fouling problem at the Community Garden reported. New 
fouling signage installed. Suspected abandoned motorhome reported and investigated. 

Page 29



Page 18 of 27 
 

Vehicle declared abandoned, but the vehicle was removed by keeper prior to removal to 
storage. (August) Hobson Park - Fouling problem area highlighted again, increased patrols 
of the area and fouling signage installed.  

 
• Royal Way – (August) Suspected abandoned vehicle inspection. 7-day notice issued, and 

the vehicle was subsequently claimed by the registered keeper. 
• King George V Memorial Playing Field - (September) Dog being exercised inside the 

Tennis Courts, an area designated Dog Exclusion under the Public Spaces Protection 
Order (PSPO). Dog walker identified and a fixed penalty notice issued for failure to comply 
with the PSPO. 

• Consort Avenue – (August) Untaxed vehicle parked on the highway for over two months. 
Vehicle immediately removed from the highway using devolved DVLA powers. 

• Anstey Way – (September) Large amount of cardboard dumped on the pavement at the 
rear of the flats. Suspect identified and investigated, and a fixed penalty notice issued for 
fly-tipping. (October) Cardboard found dumped at the rear of the flats. Two suspects 
currently under investigation. The area at the rear of the shop/flats has become a hotspot 
for fly-tipping several investigations and clearances required. Issues at the site highlighted 
and raised with partners in Housing and Property Services. 

• Spring Drive – (September) Suspected abandoned vehicle investigated. 7-day notice 
issued, and contact made with the vehicle registered keeper. 

• Newton Road – (September) Suspected abandoned vehicle investigation, on-going. 
• Alpha Terrace – (October) Suspected abandoned vehicle investigated, 7-day notice issued, 

and subsequently the vehicle was claimed by the registered keeper. 
• Rutherford Road – (November) Suspected abandoned vehicle currently being investigated. 
• Windmill Drive – (November) Suspected abandoned vehicle currently being investigated. 

 
If you would like to report an environmental crime issue in your ward, please get in contact with 
your Enforcement Officer, Bree Donovan. 
 
Operations Team 
 
Between these months we have been carrying out various tasks around the ward areas. These 
tasks include grass cutting, shrub and hedge pruning, sport pitch marking, litter picking, litter bin 
emptying, sweeping, removal of fly-tip, graffiti removal, and helping empty and clean void 
properties for our Housing Department. 
 

Page 30



Page 19 of 27 
 

The grass cutting and shrub/hedge pruning were both put on hold around the middle of October to 
concentrate on leaf fall over the coming months, but all the other activities happen every working 
day. 

 
 
In the coming months Operations will finish leaf clearing and start winter Grounds Maintenance 
work, of cutting back and reducing any shrubs/hedges that have grown substantially over the past 
year.  
 
The hot spot map shows the numbers and locations of the flytips cleared within the last six-month 
period.  
 

Page 31



Page 20 of 27 
 

 
 
If you would like to report a cleansing or grounds maintenance issue, please visit our website, and 
complete the relevant webform (found at https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/street-and-park-
maintenance) or contact our Customer Service Centre.  
 

  

Page 32

https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/street-and-park-maintenance
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/street-and-park-maintenance


Page 21 of 27 
 

Community Engagement Team Updates 
 

Hedgehog Holes 
 

The Community Engagement Team continues to work with Cambridge Hedgehogs to promote 
hedgehog holes and highways. The team can assist residents by cutting holes in fences to 
facilitate hedgehog movement between gardens.  

 

To date the team have cut over forty new hedgehog holes across the city. Should residents wish 
to have a hedgehog hole cut they can email the Community Engagement Team at 
sosvolunteers@cambridge.gov.uk who will make suitable arrangements. 

 
  

Page 33

mailto:sosvolunteers@cambridge.gov.uk


Page 22 of 27 
 

 

Greater Cambridge Shared Waste Service Update 

Greater Cambridge Shared Waste Service Updates for Cambridge (Covers the period of July to 
November 2021):  
 

Event Date Area 
CCF Info session about how to 
calculate your carbon footprint 
and waste minimisation 03. 07. 2021 Market Square 
CAD 20.07 2021 Ekin Road  

CAD 24.07 2021 
Hanover and Princess Court and 
Russell Court 

50th Anniversary of the CMT 25.07. 2021 
Cambridge Museum of 
Technology 

COPE AGM 16.08 2021 St Luke’s Church Victoria Road 
Community Action Day 11.09 2021 Wulfstan Way 
CAD 18.09 2021 Brackyn Close 
Assembly recycling talk 20.09 2021 Queen Edith Primary School 
CAD 25.09 2021 Red Cross Lane 
CAD 02.10 2021 Ditton Fields 
CAD 15.10 2021 Tenby Close 
CAD 23.10 2021 Teversham Drift 
CAD 30.10 201 East Chesterton Ashfield Close 
CAD 13.11 2021 Birdwood Road 
Online Recycling talk to Arthur 
Rank Hospice 16.11 2021 

Teams talk with Arthur Rank 
Hospice 

CAD 20.11 2021 Rawlyn Close 
CAD 27.11 2021 Ditton Fields 
 

 

 

 

  

Page 34



Page 23 of 27 
 

Environmental and Waste Data 
Public Realm [South Area] 

Period Activity Total number of 
incidents 

Cherry Hinton Queen Edith’s Trumpington 

June 2020 to 
November 2020 

Fly tipping 1 1 1 1 

June 2021 to 
November 2021 

Fly tipping 1362 54 15 67 

June 2020 to 
November 2020 

Needles 3 needles (3 
instances) 

2 needles (2 
instances) 

1 needle (1 instance) 0 needles 

June 2021 to 
November 2021 

Needles 4 needles (2 
instance)2 

3 needles (1 instance) 1 needle (1 instance) 0 needles 

June 2020 to 
November 2020 

Fixed penalty notices 1 1 1 1 

June 2021 to 
November 2021 

Fixed penalty notices 14 3 6 5 

Summary of public realm data:  
Fly tipping: 
Hot spot maps within each of the ward profiles shows the numbers and locations of the flytips within the last six-month period.  
 
Needles:  

• Cherry Hinton: In October three needles were found by a bin store at Walpole Road.  
• Queen Edith’s: In June one needle was found in Mowbray Road.  

 
Fixed penalty notices:  
Fixed penalty notices issued across the period includes two for small scale fly tipping, five for littering, five for littering domestic waste, one for a 
dog being in a dog exclusion area and one for abandoning a vehicle.   

 
1 Data not available at a ward level 
2 Data is from 1st June to 31st October 2021 

P
age 35



Page 24 of 27 
 

Private Realm [South Area]  
 

Period Activity Investigations Treatments 
Carried out 

Informal Action 
/ Written 

Warnings 
Statutory 

Notices Served 
Legal 

Proceedings 
June 2020 to 

November 2020 Pest Control NA 80 NA NA NA 

June 2021 to 
November 2021 Pest Control NA 1547 NA NA NA 

June 2020 to 
November 2020 

Refuse and waste 
complaints 0 NA 3 0 0 

June 2021 to 
November 2021 

Refuse and waste 
complaints 37 NA 3 0 0 

June 2020 to 
November 2020 

Other public health 
interventions4 24 NA 3 0 0 

June 2021 to 
November 2021 

Other public health 
interventions4 97 NA 3 0 0 

June 2020 to 
November 2020 Noise complaints 1575 NA 3 3 0 

June 2021 to 
November 2021 Noise complaints 5757 NA 3 0 0 

June 2020 to 
November 2020 

Private Sector 
Housing 

interventions 
136 NA 3 3 0 

June 2021 to 
November 2021 

Private Sector 
Housing 

interventions 
3367 NA 3 2 0 

 

 
3 All complaints will generally have at least one such action. 
4 Other public health complaints includes odour, smoke, bonfires, filthy and verminous 
5 Where multiple complaints have been received from one person these have only be counted as one complaint 
6 Please note this figure relates to investigation of reactive service request and does not include proactive inspections. 
7 Data is from 1st June 2021 to 8th November 2021 

P
age 36



Page 25 of 27 
 

Waste and Recycling Data [Greater Cambridge Area]  

Recycling rate:  
 
This is based total amount of recycling collected in blue and green bins. Waste is subject to 
seasonable fluctuations. 

 

Activity Q1 Apr-Jun 
20/21 

Q2 Jul-Sep 
20/21 

Q3 Oct-Dec 
20/21 

Q4 Jan-Mar 
20/21 

Total for 
2020/21 

Recycling rate – 
dry recycling 20.83% 21.22%    

Recycling rate – 
composting 32.47% 32.87%    

Amount 
collected for 

disposal 
46.70% 45.91%    

Page 37



Page 26 of 27 
 

3. Key contacts  

  
Area Contact Telephone Number Email 

Community Engagement Community Engagement 
Team 

01223 458084 sosvolunteers@cambridge.gov.uk  

Local Nature Reserves Ranger Vic Smith 01223 458282 Victoria.Smith@cambridge.gov.uk   

Enforcement (Cherry Hinton and 
Trumpington) 

Bree Donovan 01223 457122 bree.donovan@cambridge.gov.uk 

Enforcement (Queen Edith’s) Tony Durman 01223 458581 Tony.durman@cambridge.gov.uk  

Streets and Open Spaces 
Operations / Commercial 

Paul Jones 01223 458282 paul.jones@cambridge.gov.uk 

South Area Operations Team 
Leader 

Grant Bishop 01223 458282 Grant.bishop@cambridge.gov.uk  

Recycling Champions Birgitta Laurent 07525 213774 recycling.champions@scambs.gov.uk 

If you have a question about one of the council’s services, you will be able to find several answers on our website www.cambridge.gov.uk.  If you 
can't find what you are looking for, or want to discuss something with us, you can contact us on the details above or call 01223 457000.  

P
age 38

mailto:sosvolunteers@cambridge.gov.uk
mailto:Victoria.Smith@cambridge.gov.uk
mailto:bree.donovan@cambridge.gov.uk
mailto:Tony.durman@cambridge.gov.uk
mailto:paul.jones@cambridge.gov.uk
mailto:Grant.bishop@cambridge.gov.uk
tel:07525%20213774
mailto:recycling.champions@scambs.gov.uk
http://www.cambridge.gov.uk/


Page 27 of 27 
 

4. Volunteer schemes  
  

Time Credits  
You can earn Time Credits for your time as volunteer. Every hour of involvement with us earns 
you a 1-hour time credit – which can be spent in places like cinemas, gyms, swimming pools or 
music venues. The more time you give the more time credits you receive. 

Streets and Open Spaces Volunteers: 
We're looking for volunteers to make the streets of Cambridge even cleaner, tidier, and more 
pleasant and to spread our motto ‘A greener, cleaner city starts with you’. So, whether you're 
already part of an existing local group and want some additional support or you're an individual 
who feels strongly about these issues, then get in touch to take part. Our volunteers work to 
improve their local streets by taking action to keep them clean, tidy, and looking their best. 
 
With the support of a dedicated Area Ranger, you'll be able to: 

• Recruit other local people to help you in a project 
• Organise events locally to promote cleaner streets: litter picks, ward walks etc. 
• Have access to and use specialist equipment for removing graffiti and litter 
• Take part in large city-wide events for volunteers 
• Provide education to other members of the public 
• Work with a variety of council departments and other agencies to solve problems that you 

find on your streets. 
 

As a volunteer you're free to suggest your own ideas and we will do our best to accommodate 
them. We don't expect you to give huge amounts of time to our projects, as a volunteer, we just 
hope you can commit some regular time each month to keep the project active and vibrant in the 
community. 
 
To sign up or find out more visit our webpage https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/streets-and-open-
spaces-volunteers or contact our Community Engagement Team on 
sosvolunteers@cambridge.gov.uk  or 01223 458084 

Recycling Champions:  
Are you a passionate about recycling? Would you like to meet other people who are also keen to 
help to promote recycling, minimizing waste and sustainability? Do you enjoy working with the 
public? If yes, then why not become a recycling champion. The Greater Cambridge Shared Waste 
Service is looking for volunteers to help spread the word about recycling within the community. You 
don't need any experience or previous knowledge, you just need to believe that recycling is 
important, be friendly and approachable and be willing to convey your enthusiasm about helping 
the environment to others. Full training will be provided. 
 
Our volunteers do a variety of roles such as: 

- Run stalls at various events in the city and south of Cambridge 
- Do door knocking around flats, hand out leaflets  
- Attend monthly recycling champions meetings 
- Do talks to community groups and schools about recycling  
- Write articles in newsletters and go on trips to visit various recycling sites to learn 

about waste management and recycling.  
 
To become a recycling champion please visit our webpage 
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/become-a-recycling-champion, or contact 
recycling.champions@scambs.gov.uk  or telephone 07525 213774. 

Page 39

https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/streets-and-open-spaces-volunteers
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/streets-and-open-spaces-volunteers
mailto:sosvolunteers@cambridge.gov.uk
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/become-a-recycling-champion
mailto:recycling.champions@scambs.gov.uk
tel:07525%20213774


This page is intentionally left blank



To:   North, South, East and West Central Area Committees 

 

From:   Joel Carré, Head of Environmental Services 

 

Date:  8th November 2021 

 

Subject: City centre COVID recovery project update 

 

 

Introduction 

 

1.  The purpose of this briefing paper is to update each of the Council’s Area 

Committee on progress with various Council led strategic projects to support 

city centre economic recovery following the pandemic. 

 

Cambridge Visitor Welcome 2021  

 

2.  In November 2020, the Council, in partnership with Cambridgeshire County 

Council, Cambridge BID and Fitzwilliam Museum Enterprises Ltd, secured a 

£710K capital grant from the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Combined 

Authority.   The purpose of the grant award is to invest in a proposed 

programme of city centre measures to improve the city’s visitor offer and 

thereby support its economic recovery following the pandemic. 

 

3.  Under the title ‘Cambridge Visitor Welcome 2021’, the grant funding is 

being used to deliver a range of city centre focused infrastructure 

improvements to be completed by spring 2022, including the following: 

 

 Outdoor seating including tables, chairs and awnings  

 Cambridge mobile visitor information centre 

 Cambridge visitor website with bookable product functionality 

 Cambridge visitor app and associated digital wayfinding tool; and 

 Enhanced public realm architectural and decorative lighting 

 

Page 41

Agenda Item 9



4.  To date, the Council and its partners has delivered a range of new city 

centre picnic tables, modular benches and decorative lighting across the 

city centre, including the Market Square and Peas Hill, which have been well 

received. 

 

Welcome Back Fund 

 

5.  In July 2021, the Council was awarded £110K from the Government’s 

Welcome Back Fund to invest in a programme of measures to support the 

city centre and neighbourhood shopping areas following the pandemic, to 

be completed by March 2022.  

 

6.  The focus of this programme will be to invest in a programme of ‘seasonal’ 

events and activities, which attract visitor footfall and spend and thereby 

help to support economic economy recovery, especially in the retail, 

hospitality and cultural sectors.   The programme will include the following 

elements: 

 

 Major city centre lighting-based arts projection event and associated 

outreach arts projection events at neighbourhood shopping areas in 

February 2022 

 ‘Meanwhile use’ programme that enables local artist and community 

groups to re-animate vacant retail space in city centre and 

neighbourhood shopping areas for cultural visitor experiences; and  

  Seasonal outdoor lighting at neighbourhood shopping areas  

  

 

 

Joel Carré 

Head of Environmental Services 

joel.carre@cambridge.gov.uk 

 

 

Page 42

mailto:joel.carre@cambridge.gov.uk

	Agenda
	1 Welcome, Introduction and Apologies for Absence
	3 Notes of Previous Meeting
	Minutes

	4 Matters and Actions Arising from the Minutes
	8 Environmental Report - SAC
	1. Introduction
	2. South Area Profiles
	Ward Profile: Cherry Hinton
	Community Engagement team
	Enforcement team
	Operations Team
	Local Nature Reserves and Biodiversity

	Ward Profile: Queen Edith’s
	Community Engagement team
	Enforcement team
	Operations Team

	Ward Profile: Trumpington
	Community Engagement team
	Enforcement team

	Community Engagement Team Updates
	Hedgehog Holes

	Greater Cambridge Shared Waste Service Update
	Greater Cambridge Shared Waste Service Updates for Cambridge (Covers the period of July to November 2021):


	Environmental and Waste Data
	Public Realm [South Area]
	Summary of public realm data:
	Fly tipping:
	Needles:
	 Cherry Hinton: In October three needles were found by a bin store at Walpole Road.
	 Queen Edith’s: In June one needle was found in Mowbray Road.

	Fixed penalty notices:


	Private Realm [South Area]
	Waste and Recycling Data [Greater Cambridge Area]
	Recycling rate:


	3. Key contacts
	4. Volunteer schemes
	Time Credits
	Streets and Open Spaces Volunteers:
	Recycling Champions:


	9 City Centre COVID Recovery Project Update - Area Committee Briefing - SAC

